

SEVENTY-FIRST DAY

St. Paul, Minnesota, Monday, March 2, 1992

The Senate met at 2:00 p.m. and was called to order by the President.

CALL OF THE SENATE

Mr. Marty imposed a call of the Senate. The Sergeant at Arms was instructed to bring in the absent members.

Prayer was offered by the Chaplain, Monsignor James D. Habiger.

The members of the Senate gave the pledge of allegiance to the flag of the United States of America.

The roll was called, and the following Senators answered to their names:

Adkins	Davis	Johnson, J.B.	Merriam	Reichgott
Beckman	Day	Johnston	Metzen	Renneke
Belanger	DeCramer	Kelly	Moe, R.D.	Riveness
Benson, D.D.	Dicklich	Knaak	Mondale	Sams
Benson, J.E.	Finn	Kroening	Morse	Samuelson
Berg	Flynn	Laidig	Novak	Solon
Berglin	Frank	Langseth	Olson	Spear
Bernhagen	Frederickson, D.R.	Larson	Pappas	Stumpf
Bertram	Halberg	Lessard	Pariseau	Terwilliger
Brataas	Hottinger	Luther	Piper	Traub
Chmielewski	Hughes	Marty	Pogemiller	Vickerman
Cohen	Johnson, D.E.	McGowan	Price	Waldorf
Dahl	Johnson, D.J.	Mehrkens	Ranum	

The President declared a quorum present.

The reading of the Journal was dispensed with and the Journal, as printed and corrected, was approved.

MEMBERS EXCUSED

Messrs. Frederickson, D.J.; Gustafson and Neuville were excused from the Session of today.

MESSAGES FROM THE HOUSE

Mr. President:

I have the honor to announce that the House has appointed a committee of five members of the House to act with a similar committee on the part of the Senate to escort the Governor to the Joint Convention to be held in the House Chamber, Thursday, March 5, 1992, said Joint Convention to be

convened at 6:45 p.m. and said supplemental budget message of the Governor to be delivered at 7:00 p.m.

O'Connor, Clark, Lynch, Stanius and Welker have been appointed as members of such committee on the part of the House.

Edward A. Burdick, Chief Clerk, House of Representatives

Transmitted February 27, 1992

Mr. President:

I have the honor to announce the passage by the House of the following House File, herewith transmitted: H.F. No. 1948.

Edward A. Burdick, Chief Clerk, House of Representatives

Transmitted February 27, 1992

FIRST READING OF HOUSE BILLS

The following bill was read the first time and referred to the committee indicated.

H.F. No. 1948: A bill for an act relating to life insurance; authorizing policies for the benefit of a charity; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 61A; and 309.

Referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration for comparison with S.F. No. 1855, now on General Orders.

REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

Mr. Moe, R.D. moved that the Committee Reports at the Desk be now adopted, with the exception of the report pertaining to appointments. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Waldorf from the Committee on Governmental Operations, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1908: A bill for an act relating to community service; directing the Minnesota office on volunteer services to prepare a federal grant proposal.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 18, delete "*shall*" and insert "*must*"

Page 1, line 19, delete "*and shall*" and insert "*, including an emphasis on youth community service, service learning, and mentoring of youth. The proposal must*"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Waldorf from the Committee on Governmental Operations, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1794: A bill for an act relating to state government; appointments of department heads and members of administrative boards and agencies; clarifying procedures and requirements; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 15.0575, subdivision 4; 15.06, subdivision 5; and 15.066, subdivision 2.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass. Report adopted.

Ms. Berglin from the Committee on Health and Human Services, to which was referred

S.F. No. 672: A bill for an act relating to human services; the Minnesota equal access to employment opportunities for persons with severe disabilities act; providing for equal employment opportunities for persons with severe disabilities; establishing rights; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 43A.191, subdivision 2; 120.183; 252.40; 268A.08, subdivision 2; and 268A.09, subdivision 2; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 16B and 120.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 13, delete "8" and insert "5"

Page 1, line 23, before "*one*" insert "*one-tenth of*"

Page 1, line 25, before "*state*" insert "*the legislature and*"

Page 2, line 3, before "*Every*" insert "*The legislature and*"

Page 2, line 7, before "*one*" insert "*one-tenth of*"

Page 3, line 4, after "*For*" insert "*the legislature and*"

Pages 3 to 4, delete sections 4 to 6

Page 6, line 14, delete "1991" and insert "1992"

Page 7, line 2, delete "APPROPRIATIONS" and insert "APPROPRIATION"

Page 7, delete lines 3 to 7

Page 7, delete line 8

Page 7, line 9, delete "ADJUSTMENTS.]" and insert paragraph coding

Page 7, line 11, delete "8" and insert "5"

Renumber the sections in sequence

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 8, delete "120.183; 252.40;"

Page 1, line 10, delete "chapters 16B and 120" and insert "chapter 16B"

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mrs. Adkins from the Committee on Local Government, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1658: A bill for an act relating to Ramsey county; fixing times for the reports of the Ramsey county local government cooperation and consolidation study commission; amending Laws 1991, chapter 300, sections 1 and 2.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

“Section 1. Laws 1991, chapter 300, section 1, is amended to read:

Section 1. [RAMSEY COUNTY LOCAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES STUDY.]

A Ramsey county local government services study commission is established to study cooperation between local governments, including school districts, and the possible sharing and consolidation of services, structures, and functions. The commission shall explore cooperative ventures which would be mutually beneficial to the communities involved, review and recommend ways to eliminate overlap and duplication, design programs that would improve services and reduce costs, and develop a systematic process for cooperating, restructuring, sharing, or consolidating. The commission shall report on the advantages and disadvantages of sharing, cooperating, restructuring, or consolidating, with attention to:

- (a) citizen participation in government;
- (b) efficiency and effectiveness of the provision of public service;
- (c) taxation and other public finance matters;
- (d) public employees;
- (e) structure of government;
- (f) possible public economies;
- (g) the historic identity of the community;
- (h) economic development;
- (i) social development;
- (j) environment; and
- (k) other significant factors.

The commission shall report and make recommendations to the local government units in Ramsey county before November 15, 1991, *and again before November 15, 1993*. The elected councils and boards of the local government units affected by any recommendation, and the Ramsey county league of local governments and the Ramsey county charter commission, shall indicate, by resolution, their response to the commission's recommendations before January 15, 1992, *and again before January 15, 1994*. The commission's recommendations and any responses shall be presented to the members of the Ramsey county legislative delegation and to the legislature before February 1, 1992, *and again before February 1, 1994*. The commission may not adopt any recommendation without a 60 percent affirmative vote of the commission members voting on the issue.

The commission may examine consolidation, cooperation, restructuring, or sharing of any services, groups of services, or local government structures as the commission determines ~~except that specific examination and recommendation shall be made in regard to:~~

- (1) the city and county health departments;
- (2) city and county attorney's functions as they relate to criminal law;
- (3) city and county libraries;
- (4) public works; and
- (5) police and sheriff communications, crime lab and investigative functions.

The commission shall be 25 16 residents of, or persons whose principal place of business is located in, Ramsey county selected as follows:

(1) ~~two members one member of the county board or county employees who reside in the city of St. Paul, selected by the county board;~~

(2) ~~two members of the county board or county employees who reside in the county but not in the city of St. Paul, selected by the county board;~~

(3) ~~three members selected by (2) one member of the St. Paul city council from among or the mayor and city council members or other city employees;~~

(4) ~~three members (3) one member selected jointly by the city councils and town boards of the cities and towns in the county, other than St. Paul, from among their mayors and members or their employees;~~

(5) ~~one member of the school board of independent school district No. 625 or an employee, selected by the board;~~

(6) ~~one member of the school boards of other school districts operating in Ramsey county or an employee of those districts, selected jointly by the board members of the several districts;~~

(7) (4) six members of the public who are not public employees and do not hold public office, selected by the members of the legislature who represent the city of St. Paul and the members serving under clauses (1), (3), and (5) and (2);

(8) (5) six members of the public who are not public employees and do not hold public office, selected by the members of the legislature who represent Ramsey county outside the city of St. Paul and the ~~members member~~ serving under ~~clauses (2), (4), and (6) clause (3);~~ and

(9) (6) a chair selected by the other members of the commission who is not an elected official or public employee and who is not one of the above members of the commission.

The commission is encouraged to provide its own staff. In addition, the commission shall be assisted by a staff committee whose members shall consist of the city managers and chief of staff from the communities within Ramsey county, the Ramsey county executive director, and professional staff of these governmental units. This committee shall provide technical assistance to the commission. The commission is encouraged to solicit private or public monies to assist it in its duties. The committee may request the assistance of any other public or private agency or entity.

Members of the commission and the committee shall serve without compensation other than expenses that would be reimbursed to them by the units of government which they represent. The commission may accept gifts, grants, or donations from public and private entities to assist with the costs of its work. A gift, grant, or donation is not subject to Minnesota Statutes, chapter 10A, or other law or rule regulating lobbying expenses.

Sec. 2. Laws 1991, chapter 300, section 2, is amended to read:

Sec. 2. [COOPERATION.]

The commission must solicit recommendations from the Ramsey county league of local governments and the Ramsey county charter commission. By September 1, ~~1991~~ 1993, the commission must receive any recommendations from the league or charter commission. In its final report, the commission must state its conclusions with respect to the recommendations of the league and the charter commission.

Sec. 3. [EFFECTIVE DATE.]

This act takes effect the day after final enactment.

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 4, after the semicolon, insert "limiting the membership of the commission; clarifying the commission's duties, financing, and staffing;"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Lessard from the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1615: A bill for an act relating to game and fish; reducing deer license fees for residents under age 18; amending Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 97A.475, subdivision 2.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, lines 14, 16, 18, and 20, delete "18" and insert "16"

Page 1, after line 21, insert:

"(8) to take a second deer under section 97B.301, subdivision 4, \$11;"

Page 1, line 22, delete "(8)" and insert "(9)"

Page 1, line 24, delete "(9)" and insert "(10)"

Page 1, line 25, delete "(10)" and insert "(11)"

Page 2, line 2, delete "(11)" and insert "(12)"

Page 2, after line 2, insert:

"Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 97B.301, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. [TAKING TWO DEER.] The commissioner may, by order, allow a person to take two deer. The commissioner shall prescribe the conditions for taking the second deer including:

(1) taking by firearm or archery; and

(2) obtaining an additional license; and

(3) ~~payment of a fee not more than the fee for a firearms deer license.~~"

Page 2, line 3, delete "2" and insert "3"

Page 2, line 5, delete "1993" and insert "1992"

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 3, delete "18" and insert "16 and for licenses to take a second deer" and after "amending" insert "Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 97B.301, subdivision 4;"

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Finance. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Lessard from the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1252: A bill for an act relating to state lands; authorizing the commissioner of administration to lease certain land adjacent to Minnehaha state park to the Minneapolis park and recreation board.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 8, delete "*commissioner of administration*" and insert "*Minnesota veterans homes board*"

Page 1, line 9, delete "*up to*" and insert "*an additional*"

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Veterans and General Legislation. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Lessard from the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1722: A bill for an act relating to state lands; providing for the release of a state interest in certain property in the city of Minneapolis.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 12, after the period, insert "*Before releasing the land, the commissioner shall make a new covenant with the city providing that the land reverts to the state if it is used for other than public purposes.*"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. DeCramer from the Committee on Transportation, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1014: A bill for an act relating to bicycles; requiring registration; changing the fee structure; providing penalties; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 168C.02, subdivisions 1 and 5; 168C.03; 168C.04, subdivisions 1, 2, and by adding a subdivision; 168C.05; 168C.06; 168C.07; 168C.08; 168C.09; 168C.11; 168C.12; and 168C.13, subdivision 1; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 168C.04, subdivisions 3 and 4; and 168C.13, subdivision 2.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 168C.01, is amended to read:

168C.01 [POLICY STATEMENT.]

The legislature of the state of Minnesota finds that the use of bicycles as a means of travel and recreation embodying physical, environmental and social benefits is already recognized by many people in the state, and will be further encouraged given the opportunity for safe, convenient and pleasant bicycle travel. The legislature further finds that dependence on the private automobile must be reduced, particularly in the light of ~~an energy shortage~~ *pollution problems* and encouragement of increased bicycle usage by the provision and maintenance of bikeways and with the addition of some traffic laws designed for the orderly integration of bicycles into traffic systems, is a way of reducing this dependence. However, the growth in popularity of the bicycle as a mode of transportation and as a recreational vehicle has led to an increase in the number of bicycle thefts. *To aid in identifying a bicycle as a separate vehicle class, to aid in the identification of accident victims,* to more effectively deal with the problems associated with theft, and to aid in the recovery of stolen bicycles, a statewide bicycle registration system is hereby created.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 168C.02, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. For purposes of ~~Laws 1976, this chapter 199,~~ the terms defined in this section shall have the meanings given them.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 168C.02, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. "Bicycle" means ~~every device a vehicle having two tandem wheels, either being more than 16 inches in diameter, or having three wheels in contact with the ground, any one being more than 16 inches in diameter, propelled by human power upon which a person or persons may ride, having two tandem wheels either of which is over 14 inches in diameter, or any device generally recognized as a bicycle though equipped with two front or rear wheels,~~ or a unicycle.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 168C.02, subdivision 5, is amended to read:

Subd. 5. "~~License plate~~ *Registration sticker*" means a ~~tag, plate, seal or other device sticker~~ which can be securely attached to a bicycle and is issued upon registration of the bicycle.

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 168C.03, is amended to read:

168C.03 [APPLICATIONS.]

~~On or After March 1, 1977 and July 1, 1992, the owner of a bicycle may operated upon public property in Minnesota shall apply for registration of the bicycle to the commissioner, to any deputy registrar of motor vehicles acting pursuant to section 168.33 or to any deputy registrar of bicycles appointed by the commissioner pursuant to section 168C.11. Applications shall contain the name and address of the owner, the signature of the owner,~~

the name and address of the person from whom purchased, the date of purchase, the date of registration, the make, serial number, and any additional information as the commissioner may require. Applications shall be on a three part form provided by the commissioner. The original shall be retained by or immediately forwarded to the commissioner, the second copy shall be retained by the purchaser and the third copy shall be retained for one year by the deputy registrar, ~~if any,~~ who received the application. The commissioner shall designate a number to be stamped or otherwise permanently affixed on the frames of bicycles on which no serial number can be found, or on which the number is illegible or insufficient for identification purposes.

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 168C.04, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. [PROCEDURES.] ~~The registration fee for bicycles shall be \$9 after July 1, 1991. These Registration fees shall~~ must be paid at the time of registration. The fees, ~~other than the deputy registrar's fee in section 15,~~ and any donations in excess of the fees must be deposited in a bicycle transportation account in the special revenue fund. Proof of purchase is required for registration. Bicycles lacking proof of purchase may be registered if there is no evidence that the bicycle is stolen. However, the registration record must be marked to indicate that no proof of purchase was provided. ~~The registration is valid for three calendar years.~~ A person registering a bicycle may add an additional amount to the registration fee, and all amounts so added must be deposited in the same manner as registration fees. A person registering a bicycle must at the time of registration be informed that a registrant may add an additional amount to the fee and that all such additional amounts will be used for the purposes specified in subdivision 2.

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 168C.04, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 1a. [REGISTRATION AND FEE SCHEDULE.] (a) A bicycle owner shall register and pay a fee as follows:

- (1) until June 30, 1992, a fee of \$9 for each bicycle registered;*
 - (2) after June 30, 1992, a fee of \$5 per bicycle for up to four bicycles registered by a single owner; and*
 - (3) after June 30, 1992, a single owner may register between five and ten bicycles at one time for a single fee of \$20.*
- (b) Except as provided in clauses (1) to (4), a bicycle registration is valid for three bicycle registration years. A bicycle registration year is the period between July 1 and June 30 of the following year;*
- (1) bicycle registrations issued in calendar year 1991 are valid until June 30, 1994;*
 - (2) bicycle registrations issued in calendar year 1992 are valid until June 30, 1995;*
 - (3) bicycle registrations issued in calendar year 1993 are valid until June 30, 1996; and*
 - (4) bicycle registrations issued after January 1, 1994, are valid for three bicycle registration years.*

The commissioner shall notify every owner of a registered bicycle 30 days before renewal is required. A bicycle that is transferred to a new owner must be registered by the purchaser within seven days after transfer.

Sec. 8. Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 168C.04, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 1b. [PENALTY.] A person who operates a bicycle in violation of this section is guilty of a petty misdemeanor. No person may be convicted of a violation of this section if the person purchases a bicycle registration within ten days after the violation occurs.

Sec. 9. Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 168C.04, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 1c. [NONRESIDENTS.] Sections 3 to 9 do not apply to nonresidents except for students who are registered at an educational institution in Minnesota and are domiciled in Minnesota while attending the institution.

Sec. 10. Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 168C.04, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. [BICYCLE TRANSPORTATION ACCOUNT; MONEY ALLOCATED.] A bicycle transportation account is created in the special revenue fund. ~~All Subject to appropriation by the legislature, funds in the account, up to a maximum of \$160,000 in a fiscal year, are annually appropriated as follows:~~

~~(1) one-half to the commissioner of transportation for the shall be used by the commissioners of transportation, public safety, and natural resources for the following purposes: to offset distributions from the highway user tax distribution fund for the development of bicycle transportation and recreational facilities on public highways, including but not limited to bicycle lanes and ways on highways, off-road bicycle trails, and bicycle mapping; and~~

~~(2) one-half to the commissioner of public safety for bicycle safety programs; administration of the bicycle registration program; and public information and education designed to encourage participation in the program.~~

Sec. 11. Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 168C.06, is amended to read:

168C.06 [NOTIFICATION OF CHANGE OF ADDRESS.]

~~Upon moving or change of address, the owner of a bicycle registered pursuant to Laws 1976, under this chapter 199 shall notify the commissioner in writing of the new address within 14 days.~~

Sec. 12. Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 168C.07, is amended to read:

168C.07 [LICENSE PLATES REGISTRATION STICKERS.]

The commissioner shall provide to the registrant a suitable registration card having the registration number stamped thereon and indicating the date of registration, the make and serial number of the bicycle, the owner's name and address, and any additional information as the commissioner may require. Information concerning each registration shall be retained by the commissioner. The commissioner shall issue a ~~license plate registration sticker for each bicycle registered~~, which shall be securely attached to the bicycle covered by the registration. Upon a satisfactory showing that the ~~license plate registration sticker~~ or registration card has been lost or

destroyed the commissioner shall issue a replacement ~~license plate registration sticker~~ or registration card upon payment of a fee of \$1. All fees so collected shall be deposited ~~to in the general special revenue fund and credited to the bicycle transportation account.~~

Sec. 13. Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 168C.08, is amended to read:

168C.08 [ALTERING SERIAL NUMBERS; PENALTY.]

No person shall willfully remove, destroy, mutilate or otherwise alter the serial number or equivalent number of any bicycle designated by the commissioner pursuant to section 168C.03. No person shall willfully remove, destroy, mutilate, or otherwise alter any ~~license plate registration sticker~~ during the time in which the ~~license plate registration sticker~~ is operative. Any person who violates the provisions of this section is guilty of a misdemeanor.

Sec. 14. Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 168C.09, is amended to read:

168C.09 [THEFT; PENALTY.]

Subdivision 1. The local law enforcement agency shall report the theft of all bicycles registered ~~pursuant to Laws 1976, under this chapter 199~~ to the department of public safety within five days. Reports of the stolen bicycles shall be entered in the Minnesota crime information center of the department of public safety. When the stolen bicycle has been recovered by a local law enforcement agency, the agency shall report the recovery to the department of public safety within five days of the recovery.

Subd. 2. The commissioner shall maintain a record of all bicycles registered ~~pursuant to Laws 1976, under this chapter 199~~ in the state in an automated system. The records shall be available to all authorized law enforcement agencies through the Minnesota crime information center.

Subd. 3. Any person who knowingly sells or offers for sale a bicycle registered under ~~Laws 1976, this chapter 199~~ which is not owned by that person or a family member is guilty of theft and subject to punishment under section 609.52, subdivision 3.

Sec. 15. Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 168C.11, is amended to read:

168C.11 [DEPUTY REGISTRARS OF BICYCLES.]

Subdivision 1. [APPOINTMENT.] Subject to the provisions of subdivision 2, the commissioner shall appoint as deputy ~~registrars~~ *registrar* of bicycles ~~any bicycle dealer, or agent or employee thereof, or agent or employee of a nonprofit organization promoting bicycling or in whose activities bicycling plays an integral part, the clerk of every home rule charter and statutory city with a population over 5,000 or an agent or employee designated by a municipality that sells bicycles at public auction who applies for appointment in a manner prescribed by the commissioner; provided that concurrently there may be no more than one deputy for each separate place of business of a bicycle dealer the city clerk. Upon the request of the city clerk, the commissioner shall appoint a deputy registrar of bicycles in cities with a population under 5,000. Deputy registrars of bicycles shall act as agents of the commissioner and may shall accept registrations as provided in Laws 1976, this chapter 199, except that no deputy registrar of bicycles shall be required to register bicycles sold by other bicycle dealers. A city clerk may designate a bicycle dealer, or agent or employee thereof, or an agent or employee of a nonprofit organization established to promote bicycling as a bicycle deputy~~

registrar. A city may not deny deputy registrar designation to a bicycle dealer or nonprofit organization if any dealer or nonprofit organization in the city is designated. The commissioner, deputy registrars of motor vehicles, and Deputy registrars of bicycles may shall charge and retain an additional \$1 \$2 per individual registration granted for their services. In the case of a deputy registrar of motor vehicles, the \$1 shall be deposited in the treasury of the place for which the deputy registrar is appointed, or if not a public official the deputy registrar shall retain the filing fee and \$5 per multiple registration. A city shall use the additional fees for administrative costs of the city's bicycle programs . Other registration fees collected by the commissioner, deputy registrars of motor vehicles, and deputy registrars of bicycles shall be processed, accounted for, and transmitted to the state treasurer as required by the commissioner.

Subd. 2. [DENIAL, SUSPENSION OR REVOCATION OF APPOINTMENTS.] The commissioner, without prior notice or hearing, may issue an order denying, suspending or revoking any appointment made or applied for pursuant to this section upon finding that the applicant or deputy registrar of bicycles has violated or failed to comply with any provision of ~~Laws 1976, this chapter 199~~ or any rule adopted hereunder. Upon the entry of such an order the commissioner shall promptly serve a copy thereof on the applicant or deputy registrar of bicycles. The order shall state the reasons for its issuance and, in the case of a suspension or revocation of appointment, shall specify that upon the written request of the deputy registrar of bicycles the matter will be set for hearing within 15 days after the receipt of the request, provided that with the consent of the deputy registrar of bicycles a hearing may be held subsequent to the expiration of the period specified herein. If no hearing is requested, the order will remain in effect until it is modified or vacated by the commissioner. If a hearing is requested, the commissioner, after notice and hearing in accordance with the provisions of chapter 14, shall affirm, modify or vacate the order.

Sec. 16. Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 168C.12, is amended to read:
168C.12 [ADMINISTRATION.]

The commissioner shall adopt rules for the implementation and administration of ~~Laws 1976, this chapter 199~~ no later than March 1, 1977. ~~The commissioner shall begin to accept registrations and implement Laws 1976, chapter 199 on March 1, 1977.~~ Nothing herein shall be construed to prevent the commissioner from contracting any service provided under ~~Laws 1976, this chapter 199~~ to any private person or entity or other unit of government.

Sec. 17. Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 168C.13, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. ~~After February 28, 1977,~~ No political subdivision may license or register bicycles except as a deputy registrar pursuant to section 168C.11, subdivision 1. ~~However, any political subdivision which had such power prior to March 1, 1977, may thereafter require that any or all bicycles used or ridden upon any highway, street, alley, sidewalk or other public property within the boundaries thereof shall be registered. Applications for new registrations required pursuant to this subdivision shall be made to the commissioner in the same manner and subject to the same rules, fees and penalties as those made voluntarily pursuant to section 168C.03.~~

Sec. 18. [REPEALER.]

Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 168C.05; and 168C.13, subdivision

2; and Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 168C.04, subdivision 3, are repealed.”

Delete the title and insert:

“A bill for an act relating to bicycles; requiring registration; changing the fee structure; providing penalties; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 168C.01; 168C.02, subdivisions 1, 2, and 5; 168C.03; 168C.06; 168C.07; 168C.08; 168C.09; 168C.11; 168C.12; and 168C.13, subdivision 1; and Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 168C.04, subdivisions 1 and 2, and by adding subdivisions; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 168C.05; and 168C.13, subdivision 2; and Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 168C.04, subdivision 3.”

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Finance. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Novak from the Committee on Energy and Public Utilities, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1774: A bill for an act relating to energy; providing incentives for the use of renewable sources of electric energy; exempting wind energy conversion systems from sales taxation; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 297A.25, by adding a subdivision.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 13, after “to” insert “manufacture,”

Page 1, line 14, delete “1991” and insert “1992”

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Hughes from the Committee on Elections and Ethics, to which were referred the following appointments as reported in the Journal for February 24, 1992:

STATE ETHICAL PRACTICES BOARD

Elsa Carpenter
Douglas H. Sillers
Emily Anne Staples
Bruce Willis

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the appointments be confirmed.

Mr. Moe, R.D. moved that the foregoing committee report be laid on the table. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Novak from the Committee on Energy and Public Utilities, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1919: A bill for an act relating to trade regulations; regulating certain interactive telephone services; providing penalties and remedies; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 325E.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 8.31, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. [INVESTIGATE OFFENSES AGAINST THE PROVISIONS OF CERTAIN DESIGNATED SECTIONS; ASSIST IN ENFORCEMENT.] The attorney general shall investigate violations of the law of this state respecting unfair, discriminatory, and other unlawful practices in business, commerce, or trade, and specifically, but not exclusively, the nonprofit corporation act (sections 317A.001 to 317A.909), the act against unfair discrimination and competition (sections 325D.01 to 325D.08), the unlawful trade practices act (sections 325D.09 to 325D.16), the antitrust act (sections 325D.49 to 325D.66), section 325F.67 and other laws against false or fraudulent advertising, the antidiscrimination acts contained in section 325D.67, the act against monopolization of food products (section 325D.68), *the act regulating telephone advertising services (section 2)*, and the prevention of consumer fraud act (sections 325F.68 to 325F.70) and assist in the enforcement of those laws as in this section provided.

Sec. 2. [325E.39] [TELEPHONE ADVERTISING SERVICES.]

Subdivision 1. [DEFINITION.] For purposes of this section, "telephone advertising service" means a service that enables advertisers to make recorded personal or other advertisements available to respondents by means of voice mail or another messaging device accessed by telephone. "Telephone advertising service" does not mean advertisements for telephone services or a newspaper or other medium of mass communication that publishes an advertisement for a telephone advertising service.

Subd. 2. [VERIFICATION AND IDENTIFICATION.] A person who operates a telephone advertising service in this state shall:

(1) verify the placement of an advertisement that includes the advertiser's telephone number or other information that enables respondents to identify and communicate directly with the advertiser by calling the listed number or otherwise communicating with the person identified as the advertiser to ensure that the person placed or consented to the placement of the advertisement; and

(2) in any advertising for the telephone advertising service, provide a business mailing address or business telephone number sufficient to enable persons to communicate with the business operation of the service."

Delete the title and insert:

"A bill for an act relating to trade regulations; regulating telephone advertising services; providing penalties and remedies; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 8.31, subdivision 1; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 325E."

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Metzen from the Committee on Economic Development and Housing, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1633: A bill for an act relating to the city of Bloomington; providing for the membership of the port authority; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 469.071, by adding a subdivision.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass. Report adopted.

Mr. Metzen from the Committee on Economic Development and Housing, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1721: A bill for an act relating to the city of Minneapolis; extending authority to guarantee certain loans; amending Laws 1988, chapter 594, section 6.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, after line 18, insert:

“Sec. 2. [REPEALER.]

Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 466A.06, subdivision 2, is repealed.”

Page 1, line 20, delete “*This act*” and insert “*Section 1*”

Page 1, line 22, after the period, insert “*Under Minnesota Statutes, section 645.023, subdivision 1, paragraph (b), section 2 takes effect without local approval.*”

Renumber the sections in sequence

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 3, after the semicolon, insert “eliminating community resource funding for way to grow program;”

Page 1, line 4, after “6” insert “; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 466A.06, subdivision 2”

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Merriam from the Committee on Finance, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1854: A bill for an act relating to appropriations; clarifying the purposes for which a certain appropriation may be spent at Worthington community college.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 9, after “*may*” insert “*also*”

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Lessard from the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1830: A bill for an act relating to water; creating an exemption from certain requirements relating to once-through water use permits; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 103G.271, subdivision 5.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 2, line 10, delete “*and*”

Page 2, line 12, delete the period and insert “; and

(4) by January 1, 2003, the permittee incurs costs of developing the nature preserve and associated facilities that, when discounted to 1992 dollars, exceed twice the projected cost, as determined by the commissioner, of the conversion required in paragraph (b), discounted to 1992 dollars.

The costs incurred under clause (4) may include preparation of plans and designs; site preparation; construction of wildlife habitat structures; planting of trees and other vegetation; installation of signs and markers; design and construction of trails, docks, and access structures; and design and construction of interpretative facilities. The permittee shall submit an estimate of the cost of the conversion required in paragraph (b) to the commissioner by January 1, 1993, and shall annually report to the commissioner on the progress of the project and the level of expenditures.”

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Waldorf from the Committee on Governmental Operations, to which was referred

S.F. No. 430: A bill for an act relating to retirement; police state aid program; requiring payments equivalent to automobile insurance premium taxes by self-insurers; expanding the permissible use of police state aid; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 69.021, subdivisions 5 and 6; and 69.031, subdivision 5; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 60A.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

“Section 1. [60A.152] [INSURANCE PREMIUM TAX EQUIVALENT PAYMENT BY AUTOMOBILE RISK SELF-INSURERS.]

Subdivision 1. [DEFINITIONS.] (a) [APPLICATION.] For purposes of this section, the definitions in paragraphs (b) to (g) apply.

(b) [AUTOMOBILE RISKS.] “Automobile risks” means the risk of providing no-fault insurance under sections 65B.41 to 65B.71.

(c) [EQUIVALENT INSURANCE PREMIUM TAX AMOUNT.] “Equivalent insurance premium tax amount” means two percent of the annual premium actually paid by a person who is comparable to the self-insurer for a motor vehicle comparable to that owned, leased, or controlled by the self-insurer and located at a place comparable to the residence of the self-insurer if the self-insurer is a natural person or at the principal place of business in Minnesota of the self-insurer if the self-insurer is not a natural person, with the determination of comparability to be made by the commissioner of commerce. The self-insurer has the burden of providing to the commissioner adequate information on comparability.

(d) [MOTOR VEHICLE.] “Motor vehicle” has the meaning given in section 65B.43, subdivision 2.

(e) [PERSON.] “Person” means an owner, as defined in section 65B.43, subdivision 4, but does not mean a political subdivision as defined in section 65B.43, subdivision 20.

(f) [SELF-INSURANCE.] *"Self-insurance" means the condition of qualifying as a self-insurer by complying with section 65B.48, subdivisions 3 and 3a.*

(g) [SELF-INSURER.] *"Self-insurer" means a person who has arranged self-insurance for the automobile risks associated with the person's motor vehicle.*

Subd. 2. [EQUIVALENT PAYMENT AMOUNT.] Every self-insurer who owns, leases, or operates a motor vehicle required to be registered or licensed in this state or principally garaged in this state for at least two months in the applicable calendar year shall pay either an annual amount of \$25 or an equivalent insurance premium tax amount, whichever is less. The amount required under this subdivision is payable on July 1, annually, to the commissioner of revenue. A late payment penalty is payable if the amount is not paid by July 1, and is an additional \$10 payment if the total amount is paid by the next following December 1, or an additional amount equal to the original payment amount if the total amount is not paid until after the next following December 1.

Subd. 3. [DEPOSIT OF PAYMENT AMOUNT.] The amounts paid under subdivision 2 must be deposited in the general fund to the credit of the account from which the police state aid provided for in sections 69.011 to 69.051 is payable.

Subd. 4. [RULES AUTHORIZED.] The commissioner of revenue and the commissioner of commerce are authorized to make rules to permit the administration of this section.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 69.021, subdivision 5, is amended to read:

Subd. 5. [CALCULATION OF STATE AID.] (a) The amount of fire state aid available for apportionment shall be two percent of the fire, lightning, sprinkler leakage, and extended coverage premiums reported to the commissioner by insurers on the Minnesota Firetown Premium Report ~~and two percent of the premiums reported to the commissioner by insurers on the Minnesota Aid to Police Premium Report~~. This amount shall be reduced by the amount required to pay the state auditor's costs and expenses of the audits or exams of the firefighters relief associations.

(b) The total amount for apportionment in respect to police state aid ~~shall not be greater or lesser than~~ is the amount of premium taxes paid to the state upon the premiums reported to the commissioner by insurers on the Minnesota Aid to Police Premium Report ~~after subtracting, plus the payment amounts received under section 1 since the last aid apportionment, and reduced by the amount required to pay the state auditor's costs and expenses of the audits or exams of the police relief associations~~. The total amount for apportionment in respect to firefighters state aid shall not be greater or lesser than the amount of premium taxes paid to the state upon the premiums reported to the commissioner by insurers on the Minnesota Firetown Premium Report after subtracting the amount required to pay the state auditor's costs and expenses of the audits or exams of the firefighters relief associations. ~~The amount for apportionment in respect to police state aid shall be distributed to the municipalities maintaining police departments and to the county on the basis of the number of active peace officers, as certified pursuant to section 69.011, subdivision 2, clause (b).~~ The commissioner shall calculate the percentage of increase or decrease reflected in the apportionment over

or under the previous year's available state aid using the same premiums as a basis for comparison.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 69.021, subdivision 6, is amended to read:

Subd. 6. [CALCULATION OF APPORTIONMENT OF STATE PEACE OFFICERS AID TO COUNTIES.] ~~The police state aid available in respect to peace officers shall not exceed the amount of tax collected and~~ shall be distributed to the counties in proportion to the total number of active peace officers, as defined in section 69.011, subdivision 1, clause (g), in each county who are employed either by municipalities maintaining police departments or by the county. Any necessary adjustments shall be made to subsequent apportionments.

Sec. 4. [EFFECTIVE DATE.]

Section 1 is effective January 1, 1992. Sections 2 and 3 are effective July 1, 1992."

Delete the title and insert:

"A bill for an act relating to retirement; police state aid program; requiring payments equivalent to automobile insurance premium taxes by self-insurers; amending Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 69.021, subdivisions 5 and 6; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 60A."

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILLS

S.F. Nos. 1908, 1794, 1658, 1722, 1919, 1633, 1721, 1854, 1830 and 430 were read the second time.

MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS

Mr. Finn moved that the name of Ms. Johnston be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1669. The motion prevailed.

Ms. Johnston moved that the name of Mr. Waldorf be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1688. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Cohen moved that his name be stricken as a co-author to S.F. No. 1755. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Vickerman moved that his name be stricken as a co-author to S.F. No. 1805. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Vickerman moved that his name be stricken as a co-author to S.F. No. 1823. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Vickerman moved that his name be stricken as a co-author to S.F. No. 1832. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Bertram moved that the name of Ms. Johnson, J.B. be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1960. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Pogemiller moved that the name of Mr. Waldorf be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1984. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Riveness moved that the names of Mr. Morse, Mrs. Pariseau, Mr.

Luther and Mrs. Adkins be added as co-authors to S.F. No. 2032. The motion prevailed.

Ms. Reichgott moved that the name of Mr. Finn be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 2088. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Dicklich moved that the name of Mr. Finn be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 2092. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Solon moved that the name of Mr. Finn be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 2113. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Larson moved that the name of Mr. Moe, R.D. be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 2139. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Cohen moved that S.F. No. 1167 be withdrawn from the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws and returned to its author. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Cohen moved that S.F. No. 1727 be withdrawn from the Committee on Health and Human Services and returned to its author. The motion prevailed.

Ms. Berglin moved that S.F. No. 1821 be withdrawn from the Committee on Judiciary and re-referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Frederickson, D.R. introduced—

Senate Resolution No. 117: A Senate resolution congratulating Kathleen M. Johannsen of Le Sueur, Minnesota, on being named Minnesota Emergency Medical Technician of the Year and National Emergency Medical Technician of the Year.

Referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration.

Mr. Neuville introduced—

Senate Concurrent Resolution No. 9: A Senate concurrent resolution prohibiting the provision of travel costs by a lobbyist.

Referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration.

Ms. Johnston and Mrs. Pariseau introduced—

Senate Concurrent Resolution No. 10: A Senate concurrent resolution amending the joint rules; limiting legislative activity as a lobbyist.

Referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration.

Mr. Sams moved that his name be stricken as a co-author to S.F. No. 1887. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Marty moved that the name of Mr. Morse be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1908. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Stumpf moved that the name of Mr. Finn be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 2070. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Stumpf moved that the name of Mr. Finn be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 2074. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Stumpf moved that the name of Mr. Finn be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 2075. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Stumpf moved that the name of Mr. Finn be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 2085. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Morse moved that S.F. No. 430, on General Orders, be stricken and re-referred to the Committee on Commerce. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Berg moved that S.F. No. 1605, No. 1 on General Orders, be stricken and re-referred to the Committee on Gaming Regulation. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Metzen moved that S.F. No. 720 be recalled from the House of Representatives for further consideration. The motion prevailed.

CALENDAR

S.F. No. 1694: A bill for an act relating to Hennepin county; authorizing expenditures to improve and maintain lake quality; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 383B.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 59 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Adkins	Davis	Johnson, J.B.	Merriam	Ranum
Beckman	Day	Johnston	Metzen	Reichgott
Belanger	DeCramer	Kelly	Moe, R. D.	Renneke
Benson, D.D.	Dicklich	Knaak	Mondale	Sams
Benson, J.E.	Finn	Kroening	Morse	Samuelson
Berg	Frank	Laidig	Novak	Spear
Berglin	Frederickson, D.R.	Langseth	Olson	Stumpf
Bernhagen	Halberg	Larson	Pappas	Terwilliger
Bertram	Hottinger	Luther	Pariseau	Traub
Brataas	Hughes	Marty	Piper	Vickerman
Cohen	Johnson, D.E.	McGowan	Pogemiller	Waldorf
Dahl	Johnson, D.J.	Mehrkins	Price	

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

GENERAL ORDERS

The Senate resolved itself into a Committee of the Whole, with Mr. Hughes in the chair.

After some time spent therein, the committee arose, and Mr. Hughes reported that the committee had considered the following:

S.F. Nos. 797, 1716 and 1608, which the committee recommends to pass.

On motion of Mr. Moe, R.D., the report of the Committee of the Whole, as kept by the Secretary, was adopted.

INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING OF SENATE BILLS

The following bills were read the first time and referred to the committees indicated.

Ms. Pappas, Messrs. Kelly, Pogemiller and Ms. Ranum introduced—

S.F. No. 2148: A bill for an act relating to education; including excess costs of certain hazards in the excess transportation levy; making a levy

adjustment; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 275.125, subdivision 5e.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mses. Pappas, Ranum and Mr. Pogemiller introduced—

S.F. No. 2149: A bill for an act relating to education; expanding state transportation and authorization; making a levy adjustment; amending appropriations and entitlements; amending Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, sections 124.223, subdivision 1; and 124.225, subdivision 1; Laws 1991, chapter 265, article 2, section 19, subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Ms. Pappas, Messrs. Kelly, Pogemiller and Ms. Ranum introduced—

S.F. No. 2150: A bill for an act relating to education; modifying the nonregular transportation revenue inflation factor; making a levy adjustment; amending appropriations and entitlements; amending Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 124.225, subdivision 7d; and Laws 1991, chapter 265, article 2, section 19, subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Ms. Pappas, Mr. Pogemiller and Ms. Ranum introduced—

S.F. No. 2151: A bill for an act relating to education; restoring state transportation and authorization for late activities buses; making a levy adjustment; amending appropriations and entitlements; amending Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, sections 124.223, subdivision 1; and 124.225, subdivisions 1 and 7d; Laws 1991, chapter 265, article 2, section 19, subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mses. Flynn, Berglin and Mr. Spear introduced—

S.F. No. 2152: A bill for an act relating to human services; requiring the commissioner of human services to investigate child maltreatment in publicly licensed day care facilities; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 626.556, subdivision 10b.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Mses. Flynn, Berglin and Mr. Merriam introduced—

S.F. No. 2153: A bill for an act relating to human services; directing the commissioner of human services to provide equal access to new or existing community programs to all persons with mental retardation or related conditions; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 245.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Mr. Bertram introduced—

S.F. No. 2154: A bill for an act relating to local government; specifying the prosecuting attorney for certain offenses; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 487.25, subdivision 10.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Novak, Pogemiller, Ms. Reichgott, Messrs. Luther and Johnson, D.J. introduced—

S.F. No. 2155: A bill for an act relating to real property; providing for the rights of persons holding certificate of title to registered land; amending Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, sections 508.25; and 508A.25.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mr. Chmielewski introduced—

S.F. No. 2156: A bill for an act relating to telecommunications; allowing STARS system services to be resold or subleased to certain nonprofit organizations; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 16B.465, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Ms. Berglin introduced—

S.F. No. 2157: A bill for an act relating to general assistance and work readiness; transferring secondary school students for whom English is a second language from the work readiness program to the general assistance program; amending Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 256D.05, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Mr. Solon introduced—

S.F. No. 2158: A bill for an act relating to the environment; petrofund; providing that bonds or insurance must be provided by persons bidding on or performing corrective actions; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 115C.

Referred to the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Price, Lessard and Berg introduced—

S.F. No. 2159: A bill for an act relating to horse racing; authorizing distribution from the breeders' fund for other breeds; deleting limitations on fair racing days; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 240.14, subdivision 1; Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 240.18, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Gaming Regulation.

Mr. Davis introduced—

S.F. No. 2160: A bill for an act relating to counties; providing for the place of residence of commissioners in certain years; amending Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 375.025, subdivision 4.

Referred to the Committee on Elections and Ethics.

Mr. Kelly introduced—

S.F. No. 2161: A bill for an act relating to taxation; limiting the income tax deduction for qualified residence interest; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 290.01, by adding a subdivision; and 290.62; Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 290.01, subdivision 19a.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Messrs. Bernhagen; Frederickson, D.R.; Price and Novak introduced—

S.F. No. 2162: A bill for an act relating to natural resources; revising certain laws concerning commercial activities related to wild animals; providing penalties; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 84.091, subdivision 3; 84.093; 94A.105, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 4, and by adding a subdivision; 97A.215, subdivision 1; 97A.421, subdivision 1; 97A.425, subdivisions 1, 2, and 3; 97A.475, subdivisions 19, 21, 22, and 24; 97A.505, subdivision 4; 97B.601, subdivision 2; 97B.905, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, and by adding a subdivision; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 97A; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 97A.105, subdivision 6.

Referred to the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources.

Mr. Kelly introduced—

S.F. No. 2163: A bill for an act relating to taxation; income; providing an exclusion for unemployment compensation; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 290.01, subdivision 19b.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Bertram introduced—

S.F. No. 2164: A bill for an act relating to taxation; providing an exemption from the sales tax for isolated sales of all assets of certain corporations; amending Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 297A.25, subdivision 12, as amended.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Messrs. Belanger; Johnson, D.J.; Ms. Flynn, Reichgott and Mr. Terwilliger introduced—

S.F. No. 2165: A bill for an act relating to taxation; providing an exemption from the alternative minimum tax; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 290.0922, subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Messrs. Stumpf; Johnson, D.J.; Moe, R.D.; Kroening and Mrs. Pariseau introduced—

S.F. No. 2166: A bill for an act relating to public employment; providing an early retirement incentive for certain public employees; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 275.125, by adding a subdivision; Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 275.50, subdivision 5.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Messrs. McGowan, Belanger, Laidig, Knaak and Neuville introduced—

S.F. No. 2167: A bill for an act relating to crimes; expanding the sex offender registration law to require offenders to register when convicted of crimes against certain adult victims; regulating the conditions of probation imposed on convicted sex offenders; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 609.135, by adding a subdivision; 609.342, subdivision 3; 609.343, subdivision 3; 609.344, subdivision 3; 609.345, subdivision 3; and 609.346, subdivision 2; Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 243.166, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Ms. Piper and Mr. Johnson, D.J. introduced—

S.F. No. 2168: A bill for an act relating to taxation; providing local government aid increases to the city of Alden.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Ms. Johnson, J.B.; Messrs. Sams, Lessard, Renneke and Mrs. Pariseau introduced—

S.F. No. 2169: A bill for an act relating to veterans; clarifying admission standards for the Minnesota veterans homes; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 198.022.

Referred to the Committee on Veterans and General Legislation.

Mr. Morse introduced—

S.F. No. 2170: A bill for an act relating to local government; regulating certain interests in contracts by public officers; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 471.88, by adding subdivisions.

Referred to the Committee on Local Government.

Mr. Johnson, D.E. introduced—

S.F. No. 2171: A bill for an act relating to Kandiyohi county; permitting the consolidation of the offices of auditor and treasurer.

Referred to the Committee on Local Government.

Mr. Waldorf introduced—

S.F. No. 2172: A bill for an act relating to occupations and professions; board of electricity; exempting certain electrical equipment from listing and labeling requirements; requiring the board of electricity to adopt rule amendments; amending Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 326.245.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Mr. Solon introduced—

S.F. No. 2173: A bill for an act relating to cemeteries; providing for additional care fund charges in the sale of certain cemetery lots; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 306.15.

Referred to the Committee on Veterans and General Legislation.

Mr. Bertram introduced—

S.F. No. 2174: A bill for an act relating to taxation; property; providing a special levy for certain firefighters' relief funds; amending Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 275.50, subdivision 5.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws. Mr. Waldorf questioned the reference thereon and, under Rule 35, the bill was referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration.

Messrs. Belanger, Solon, Ms. Pappas, Messrs. Kroening and Riveness introduced—

S.F. No. 2175: A bill for an act relating to education; providing for the location of a school within a retail and entertainment complex; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 340A.509.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Mr. Bertram introduced—

S.F. No. 2176: A bill for an act relating to taxation; delaying increases in valuation of newly platted land; amending Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 273.11, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Spear introduced—

S.F. No. 2177: A bill for an act relating to juries; prohibiting exclusion from jury service based on a disability; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 593.32.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Ms. Berglin introduced—

S.F. No. 2178: A bill for an act relating to human services; requiring medical care providers who treat patients under state medical programs to disclose information about success rates and outcomes for a recommended procedure; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 256.9655.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Mr. McGowan introduced—

S.F. No. 2179: A bill for an act relating to education; requiring a violence prevention curriculum to help children effectively cope with violence in the family setting and elsewhere; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 126.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mr. Dicklich introduced—

S.F. No. 2180: A bill for an act relating to data practices; providing that library patron records are private data; amending Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 13.40, subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mr. Solon introduced—

S.F. No. 2181: A bill for an act relating to cities; Duluth; authorizing the establishment of additional detached facilities under certain conditions.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Messrs. Solon and Gustafson introduced—

S.F. No. 2182: A bill for an act relating to retirement; Duluth teachers retirement fund association; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 354A; repealing Laws 1985, chapter 259, sections 2 and 3; and Laws 1990, chapter 570, article 7, section 4.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Messrs. Hughes, Knaak, Dicklich, Kroening and Dahl introduced—

S.F. No. 2183: A bill for an act relating to education; providing for a workplace literacy center and demonstration project; appropriating money; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 136C.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mr. Merriam introduced—

S.F. No. 2184: A bill for an act relating to medical records; modifying provisions concerning patient consent to release of records; amending Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 144.335, subdivisions 1 and 3a.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Merriam and Lessard introduced—

S.F. No. 2185: A bill for an act relating to game and fish; limiting the prohibition on the use of radio equipment to take protected wild animals to big game and small game; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 97B.085, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources.

Mses. Traub, Ranum and Mr. Neuville introduced—

S.F. No. 2186: A bill for an act relating to human services; providing for appointment of a member to the child abuse prevention advisory council by the commissioner of human services; providing for an American Indian child welfare advisory council; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 257.3579; Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 299A.23, subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Messrs. Lessard, Stumpf and Bertram introduced—

S.F. No. 2187: A bill for an act relating to taxation; repealing the corporate alternative minimum tax; amending Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, sections 290.0921, subdivision 8; 290.35, subdivision 3; and 298.01, subdivisions 3d and 4e; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 290.0921,

subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 3a, 4, 5, 6, and 7; and 298.01, subdivisions 3c and 4d.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Messrs. Lessard and Finn introduced—

S.F. No. 2188: A bill for an act relating to taxation; increasing the amount of certain payments in lieu of taxes; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 477A.12; and 477A.14.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Lessard introduced—

S.F. No. 2189: A bill for an act relating to taxation; providing for additional payments of fire state aid; appropriating money.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Lessard introduced—

S.F. No. 2190: A bill for an act relating to elections; changing the voter certification and balloting provisions for the presidential primary; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 207A.03, subdivision 2; and 207A.08.

Referred to the Committee on Elections and Ethics.

Messrs. Lessard, Finn and Bertram introduced—

S.F. No. 2191: A bill for an act relating to liquor; providing a procedure for determining liquor liability insurance rates; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 340A.409, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Messrs. Lessard, Vickerman, Finn and Bertram introduced—

S.F. No. 2192: A bill for an act proposing an amendment to the Minnesota Constitution, article XIV; dedicating and allocating motor vehicle excise tax proceeds to highway and transit purposes; creating Minnesota mobility trust fund and surface transportation fund; increasing gasoline tax; making technical changes; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 174.32; and 296.02, subdivision 1b; Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 16A.711, subdivision 3; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 174; and 297B; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, sections 161.041; and 297B.09.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation.

Mr. Dicklich introduced—

S.F. No. 2193: A bill for an act authorizing a conveyance of state lands to the city of Biwabik.

Referred to the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources.

Ms. Reichgott and Mr. Pogemiller introduced—

S.F. No. 2194: A bill for an act relating to governmental operations; setting conditions for certain state laws; regulating payments; fixing local accounting procedures; providing for investments and uses of public facilities; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 11A.24, subdivision 6; 13.76, by adding a subdivision; 367.36, subdivision 1; 412.222; 471.49, by adding a subdivision; 471.66; 471.696; 471.697; 471.6985; 477A.017, subdivision 2; and 609.415, subdivision 1; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 279; 471; and 609; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 128B.10, subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Ms. Johnson, J.B. and Mr. Chmielewski introduced—

S.F. No. 2195: A bill for an act relating to education; establishing an adopt-a-school program allowing students and the community to voluntarily maintain a public school; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 120.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mses. Traub, Flynn, Pappas, Messrs. Riveness and Kelly introduced—

S.F. No. 2196: A bill for an act relating to human services; providing for notice to vendors when payments on behalf of a recipient will be reduced or terminated; limiting the liability of the state and county for damages claimed by vendors due to failure of a recipient to pay for rent, goods, or services; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 256.81.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Mr. Cohen, Ms. Flynn, Messrs. Bernhagen, Novak and Pogemiller introduced—

S.F. No. 2197: A bill for an act relating to taxation; imposing taxes, increasing tax rates, and dedicating tax revenues for support of nonprofit arts organizations; providing for distribution of the tax proceeds as determined by the state board of the arts; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 129D.01; 290.62; 297A.02, by adding subdivisions; Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, sections 297A.44, subdivision 1; and 349A.10, subdivision 5; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 129D.

Referred to the Committee on Veterans and General Legislation.

Mr. Cohen introduced—

S.F. No. 2198: A bill for an act relating to human rights; prohibiting employers from asking employees if they have made or filed sexual harassment complaints; extending the statute of limitations for sexual harassment complaints; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 363.03, subdivision 1; and 363.06, subdivision 3.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mr. Merriam, Ms. Johnson, J.B.; Messrs. Mondale, Dahl and Frederickson, D.R. introduced—

S.F. No. 2199: A bill for an act relating to waste management; defining postconsumer material; emphasizing and clarifying waste reduction; setting requirements for use of labels on products and packages indicating recycled content; amending provisions related to designation of waste; strengthening the requirement for pricing of waste collection based on volume or weight of waste collected; requiring recycled content in and recyclability of telephone directories and requiring recycling of waste directories; requiring labeling of rechargeable batteries; requiring studies on automobile waste, construction debris, and used motor oil; and making various other amendments and additions related to solid waste management; authorizing rule-making; providing penalties; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 16B.121; 115.071, subdivision 1; 115A.03, subdivision 36a, and by adding subdivisions; 115A.07, by adding a subdivision; 115A.557, subdivision 3; 115A.63, subdivision 3; 115A.81, subdivision 2; 115A.93, by adding a subdivision; 115A.981; 325E.12; 325E.125, subdivision 1; and 473.844, subdivision 4; Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, sections 16B.122, subdivision 2; 115A.02; 115A.15, subdivision 9; 115A.411, subdivision 1; 115A.83; 115A.9157, subdivision 5; 115A.93, subdivision 3; 115A.931; 325E.1251, subdivision 2; and 473.849; Laws 1991, chapter 337, section 90; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 115A.

Referred to the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Neuville, Dahl and Dicklich introduced—

S.F. No. 2200: A bill for an act relating to education; modifying and clarifying certain provisions relating to the state academies at Faribault; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 120A.09, subdivision 2, and by adding a subdivision; Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 120.17, subdivision 7a; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 128A.022, subdivision 5.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mses. Pappas, Ranum, Messrs. Pogemiller, Merriam and Dahl introduced—

S.F. No. 2201: A bill for an act relating to education; authorizing a levy; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 275.125, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Messrs. Benson, D.D.; Bernhagen and Renneke introduced—

S.F. No. 2202: A bill for an act relating to taxation; property; providing for the valuation and assessment of vacant platted property; amending Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 273.11, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Messrs. Benson, D.D.; Johnson, D.E. and Laidig introduced—

S.F. No. 2203: A bill for an act relating to redistricting; requiring the revisor of statutes to submit plans for legislative and congressional redistricting; establishing a procedure for the legislature to act on plans submitted by the revisor; creating a redistricting advisory commission; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 2.

Referred to the Committee on Redistricting.

Messrs. Dahl, Frank, Price, Metzen and Langseth introduced—

S.F. No. 2204: A bill for an act relating to motor vehicles; environment; providing for biennial inspections for motor vehicle emissions; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 116.61, subdivision 1; 116.62, subdivision 4; and 116.64, subdivisions 1 and 3.

Referred to the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Laidig and Price introduced—

S.F. No. 2205: A bill for an act relating to state land; authorizing private sale of certain land in Washington county; authorizing environmental cleanup of the land; authorizing alteration of marginal lands.

Referred to the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources.

Ms. Johnson, J.B.; Messrs. Riveness, Bertram, Sams and Solon introduced—

S.F. No. 2206: A resolution memorializing Congress to allow doctors of chiropractic status as commissioned officers in the military.

Referred to the Committee on Veterans and General Legislation.

Messrs. Renneke and Bertram introduced—

S.F. No. 2207: A bill for an act relating to motor vehicles; specifying that registration and payment of taxes on a motor vehicle to which special veterans' license plates had been issued is the responsibility of the transferee; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 168.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation.

Mrs. Brataas, Ms. Traub, Mrs. Adkins, Messrs. Davis and Chmielewski introduced—

S.F. No. 2208: A bill for an act relating to Olmsted county; permitting certain exemptions for the conveyance of certain county property.

Referred to the Committee on Local Government.

Messrs. Riveness, Mondale, Luther, Metzen and McGowan introduced—

S.F. No. 2209: A bill for an act relating to crimes; automobile theft; increasing the penalty for fraudulently allowing use or possession of a certificate of title; establishing an automobile theft prevention program; increasing penalty for falsely reporting stolen vehicles; clarifying that the theft statute encompasses disposal of property with altered serial numbers;

increasing penalty for possessing or dealing in motor vehicles or parts with altered serial numbers; permitting factfinder to infer knowledge that property is stolen from existence of altered identification number; increasing penalty for insurance fraud involving false reports of stolen vehicles; requiring restitution to lawful owners and insurers of stolen motor vehicles; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 168A.30, subdivision 1; 609.505; 609.52, subdivision 2; 609.53, by adding a subdivision; 609.611; and 611A.04, by adding a subdivision; Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 609.52, subdivision 3; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 168A.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation.

Ms. Pappas, Messrs. Knaak, Cohen, Kelly and Marty introduced—

S.F. No. 2210: A bill for an act relating to Ramsey county; providing for the certification of eligibles for county positions; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 383A.291, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Local Government.

Mr. Metzen, Mrs. Pariseau, Mr. Halberg, Ms. Johnston and Mr. Neuville introduced—

S.F. No. 2211: A bill for an act relating to human services; providing for a pilot project for improved mental health services delivery system in Dakota county for adults with serious and persistent mental illness.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Messrs. Solon, Luther, Belanger, Larson and Samuelson introduced—

S.F. No. 2212: A bill for an act relating to commerce; regulating service of process on certain corporations; carrying out the intent of the legislature to make uniform the statutory service of process provisions under the jurisdiction of the department of commerce; regulating insurance agent licensing and education; regulating conversion privileges on accident and health policies; modifying coverage for diagnostic procedures for cancer; regulating crop hail adjusters; making various technical changes; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 48.185, subdivision 7; 60A.17, subdivision 1a; 60A.1701, subdivisions 3 and 7; 60A.19, subdivision 4; 60A.21, subdivision 2; 60D.02, subdivision 8; 62A.21, subdivision 2b; 62A.30, subdivision 1; 62A.54; 62E.16; 64B.35, subdivision 2; 71A.02, subdivision 3; 72A.22, subdivision 5; 72A.37, subdivision 2; 72A.43, subdivision 2; 72B.02, by adding a subdivision; 72B.03, subdivision 2; 72B.04, subdivision 6; 80A.27, subdivisions 7 and 8; 80C.20; 82.31, subdivision 3; 82A.22, subdivisions 1 and 2; 82B.15, subdivision 3; 83.39, subdivisions 1 and 2; and 543.08; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 65B.70.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Messrs. Solon, Metzen, Spear, Belanger and Ms. Pappas introduced—

S.F. No. 2213: A bill for an act relating to financial institutions; regulating bank charters, the purchase and sale of property, relocations, loans, detached facilities, capital and surplus requirements, and clerical services; regulating the report and audit schedules and account insurance of credit unions;

regulating business changes of industrial loan and thrifts; regulating business changes, license requirements, loan security, and interest rates of regulated lenders; providing special corporate voting and notice provisions for banking corporations; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 46.041, subdivision 4; 46.044; 46.047, subdivision 2; 46.048, subdivision 3; 46.131, subdivision 4; 47.10; 47.101, subdivision 3; 47.20, subdivisions 2, 4a, and 5; 47.52; 47.54; 47.55; 48.02; 48.89, subdivision 5; 49.34, subdivision 2; 52.06, subdivision 1; 52.24, subdivision 1; 53.03, subdivision 5; 56.04; 56.07; 56.12; 56.125, subdivision 2; 56.131, subdivision 4; 300.23; 300.52, subdivision 1; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 48.03, subdivisions 4 and 5.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Messrs. Hughes, Beckman, Dahl, Ms. Olson and Mr. Pogemiller introduced—

S.F. No. 2214: A bill for an act relating to education; permitting the establishment of regional centers of the state department at ECSU's; allowing certain districts to petition to act as education districts; allowing the loaning and relocation of certain employees; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 121.11, subdivision 7; and 123.58, subdivision 3; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 122.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mr. Mehrkens, Mrs. Pariseau, Messrs. Larson, Merriam and Chmielewski introduced—

S.F. No. 2215: A bill for an act proposing an amendment to the Minnesota Constitution to provide for a unicameral legislature; changing article IV; article VIII, section 1; article IX, sections 1 and 2; and article XI, section 5; providing by law for a unicameral legislature of 135 members; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 2.021; and 2.031, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Elections and Ethics.

Ms. Berglin, Mr. Johnson, D.J.; Mses. Reichgott, Flynn and Mr. Halberg introduced—

S.F. No. 2216: A bill for an act relating to human services; providing for state takeover of the county share of the costs of growth in emergency general assistance; negotiated rate facility payments and emergency assistance; amending Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 256.025, subdivision 3.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Mr. Stumpf introduced—

S.F. No. 2217: A bill for an act relating to state government; prohibiting the construction of state buildings with flat roofs; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 16B.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Ms. Flynn, Messrs. Knaak; Moe, R.D.; Samuelson and Ms. Ranum introduced—

S.F. No. 2218: A bill for an act relating to health; prohibiting health care providers from disclosing information relating to a negative HIV test, except with the special written consent of the patient; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 144.335, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mr. Hottinger introduced—

S.F. No. 2219: A bill for an act relating to education; transferring powers and responsibilities for licensing private business, trade, and correspondence schools to the higher education coordinating board; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 141.21, by adding a subdivision; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 141.21, subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Messrs. Finn; Stumpf; Moe, R.D. and Dicklich introduced—

S.F. No. 2220: A bill for an act relating to education; permitting the state university board to demolish and replace the Anishinabe Center on the Bemidji State University campus.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Messrs. Finn; Stumpf; Moe, R.D. and Morse introduced—

S.F. No. 2221: A bill for an act relating to education; appropriating money to the state university board to assist in the cleanup of the Kummer landfill.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Messrs. Finn; Moe, R.D.; Stumpf and Dicklich introduced—

S.F. No. 2222: A bill for an act relating to education; permitting the Bemidji State University Foundation to advance money for a new bookstore on the Bemidji State University campus.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mrs. Pariseau, by request, introduced—

S.F. No. 2223: A bill for an act relating to insurance; accident and health; regulating assignments of benefits and other claims practices; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 72A.201, subdivisions 1, 3, 4, and by adding a subdivision; and 72A.21.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Ms. Ranum, Mr. Finn, Ms. Reichgott, Mr. Sams and Ms. Johnson, J.B. introduced—

S.F. No. 2224: A bill for an act relating to domestic abuse; requiring judicial training on domestic abuse; requiring consideration of domestic abuse against children in custody proceedings; limiting the issuance of mutual restraining orders; requiring court administrators to forward orders for protection when applicants change residences; providing for statewide

enforcement of orders for protection; requiring all prosecuting authorities to prepare prosecution plans; providing for the establishment of advocacy programs in each judicial district; requiring presentence investigations; requiring certain arrests and providing for law enforcement policies and procedures; requiring consideration of the primary aggressor in making arrests; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 518.17, subdivision 1; 518B.01, subdivision 13, and by adding a subdivision; 609.115, subdivision 1; and 611A.0311, subdivisions 2 and 3; Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, sections 518B.01, subdivision 6; and 611A.32, subdivision 1; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 480 and 629.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mr. Samuelson introduced—

S.F. No. 2225: A bill for an act relating to taxation; authorizing a property tax exemption for certain improvements to real property; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 469.181, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, and by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Pogemiller, Ms. Ranum, Mr. Solon, Ms. Pappas and Mr. Cohen introduced—

S.F. No. 2226: A bill for an act relating to education; authorizing the sale of bonds; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 124C.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mr. Metzen introduced—

S.F. No. 2227: A bill for an act relating to landlords and tenants; changing the interest rate required on a rental deposit; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 504.20, subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Economic Development and Housing.

Mr. DeCramer introduced—

S.F. No. 2228: A bill for an act relating to taxation; property; requiring certain findings by governing body of a municipality before creation of a leasehold cooperative; amending Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 273.124, subdivision 6.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Spear, Ms. Flynn, Mr. Pogemiller, Ms. Berglin and Pappas introduced—

S.F. No. 2229: A bill for an act relating to children; providing for a recognition of parentage with the force and effect of a paternity adjudication; providing for preparation and distribution of a recognition form and educational materials for paternity; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 144.215, subdivision 3; 257.54; 257.541; 257.55, subdivision 1; 257.59, subdivision 1; 257.74, subdivision 1; and 518.156, subdivision 1; Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 257.57, subdivision 2; proposing coding

for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 257.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Messrs. Marty, Kelly, Spear, Laidig and McGowan introduced—

S.F. No. 2230: A bill for an act relating to crime; expanding the administrative subpoena power of the county attorney; making information on closed bank accounts available to authorities investigating worthless check cases; specifying when certain search warrants may be served; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 388.23, subdivision 1; 609.541, subdivision 4; and 626.14; Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 609.535, subdivision 6.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Price and Lessard introduced—

S.F. No. 2231: A bill for an act relating to natural resources; requiring establishment of aquatic management areas; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 86A.05, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Marty, Kelly, Spear, Laidig and McGowan introduced—

S.F. No. 2232: A bill for an act relating to courts; requiring the state to reimburse counties for certain extradition expenses from any forfeited bail of the defendant or probationer that had been forwarded to the state treasury as required by law; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 485.018, subdivision 5.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Stumpf and Lessard introduced—

S.F. No. 2233: A bill for an act relating to outdoor recreation; granting counties an option to decline to participate in the distribution of snowmobile and all-terrain vehicle trail grant-in-aid funds; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 84.83, by adding a subdivision; and 85.018, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources.

Mr. Finn introduced—

S.F. No. 2234: A bill for an act relating to occupations and professions; modifying disciplinary requirements of the board of social work; allowing the issuance of practice permits; clarifying requirements for changes in licensure level; providing penalties; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 148B.04, by adding a subdivision; 148B.15; 148B.18, subdivisions 9 and 12; 148B.21, subdivision 2, and by adding subdivisions; 148B.22, subdivision 2; 148B.27, subdivision 3; 148B.28, subdivision 2; Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, sections 148B.04, subdivision 3; 148B.05, subdivision 1; 148B.07, subdivision 3; 148B.08, subdivision 1, and by adding a subdivision; and 148B.175, subdivisions 3, 4, 5, and 8; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 148B; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 148B.05, subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Messrs. Riveness; Frederickson, D.R.; Kroening; Merriam and Price introduced—

S.F. No. 2235: A bill for an act relating to state government; the department of administration; directing the commissioner of administration to monitor the availability of federal money to state agencies and agency application for and receipt of federal grants; requiring agencies to cooperate with the commissioner; requiring reports to the legislature; appropriating money; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 16B.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Messrs. Riveness, Waldorf, Mrs. Pariseau, Mr. Hughes and Ms. Ranum introduced—

S.F. No. 2236: A bill for an act relating to governmental units; organizations and agencies established by law, executive order, or action of a political subdivision acting alone or jointly with another political subdivision; imposing standards and requirements of accountability; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 471.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Messrs. Morse and Stumpf introduced—

S.F. No. 2237: A bill for an act relating to workers' compensation; regulating benefits, providers, dispute resolution, and insurance; imposing penalties; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 15A.083, subdivision 7; 79.095; 79.251, subdivision 4; 79.252, subdivisions 1 and 3; 79.61, subdivision 1; 175.007; 176.011, subdivisions 3, 11a, 18, 27, and by adding a subdivision; 176.021, subdivision 3; 176.041, subdivision 1a; 176.061, subdivision 10, and by adding a subdivision; 176.081, subdivisions 1, 2, and 3; 176.101, subdivisions 1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 8, and by adding subdivisions; 176.102, subdivisions 1, 1a, 2, 3, 3a, 4, 6, 7, 9, and 11; 176.103, subdivision 3; 176.105, subdivisions 1 and 4; 176.111, subdivisions 6, 7, 8, 12, 14, 15, 18, 20, and 21; 176.129, subdivision 10; 176.130, subdivisions 8 and 9; 176.131, subdivisions 1, 1a, 2, 8, and by adding a subdivision; 176.132, subdivisions 1, 2, and 3; 176.135, subdivisions 1, 1a, 5, 6, and 7; 176.136, subdivisions 1, 2, and by adding subdivisions; 176.138; 176.139, subdivision 2; 176.155, subdivision 1; 176.179; 176.181, subdivisions 3 and 7; 176.182; 176.183, subdivision 1; 176.185, subdivision 5a; 176.191, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, and 4; 176.194, subdivisions 4 and 5; 176.215, by adding a subdivision; 176.221, subdivisions 3, 3a, 6a, and 7; 176.231, subdivision 10; 176.305, subdivision 1; 176.351, subdivision 2a; 176.421, subdivisions 1, 6, and 7; 176.442; 176.461; 176.645, subdivisions 1 and 2; 176.66, subdivision 11; 176.83, subdivisions 5, 6, and by adding a subdivision; 176.84, subdivision 2; 176A.03, by adding a subdivision; 182.666, subdivision 7; 268.08, subdivision 3; 353.33, subdivision 5; and 480B.01, subdivisions 1 and 10; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 176; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 176.011, subdivision 26; 176.101, subdivisions 3a, 3b, 3c, 3d, 3e, 3f, 3g, 3h, 3i, 3j, 3k, 3l, 3m, 3n, 3o, 3p, 3q, 3r, 3s, 3t, and 3u; 176.106; 176.111, subdivision 8a; 176.135, subdivision 3; and 176.136, subdivision 5.

Referred to the Committee on Employment.

Messrs. Morse and Merriam introduced—

S.F. No. 2238: A bill for an act relating to appropriations; appropriating money for control, research, and abatement of nuisance aquatic exotic species in public waters and wetlands.

Referred to the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources.

Ms. Piper introduced—

S.F. No. 2239: A bill for an act relating to retirement; setting an earlier accrual date for a certain retired member of the state retirement system.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Messrs. Stumpf, Morse, Beckman and Davis introduced—

S.F. No. 2240: A bill for an act relating to workers' compensation; providing a new general system of law for the compensation of employment related injuries; providing rights, duties, and remedies; providing for administration and procedure; permitting adoption of administrative rules; modifying insurance regulations; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 79.01, subdivision 1; 79.074, by adding subdivisions; 79.252, by adding a subdivision; 79.50; 79.59; and 176A.03, by adding a subdivision; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 79; proposing coding for new law as Minnesota Statutes, chapter 176C; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 175.007.

Referred to the Committee on Employment.

Mr. Stumpf introduced—

S.F. No. 2241: A bill for an act relating to intoxicating liquor; authorizing Lake township in Roseau county to establish, own, and operate an exclusive liquor store.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Mr. Stumpf introduced—

S.F. No. 2242: A bill for an act relating to retirement; authorizing a benefit increase for certain retired police officers and surviving spouses in the city of Thief River Falls.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Mr. Stumpf introduced—

S.F. No. 2243: A bill for an act relating to workers' compensation; providing a new general system of law for the compensation of employment related injuries; providing rights, duties, and remedies; providing for administration and procedure; permitting adoption of administrative rules; modifying insurance regulations; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 79.01, subdivision 1; 79.074, by adding subdivisions; 79.252, by adding a subdivision; 79.50; 79.59; and 176A.03, by adding a subdivision; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 79; proposing coding for new law as Minnesota Statutes, chapter

176C; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 175.007.

Referred to the Committee on Employment.

Mr. Cohen introduced—

S.F. No. 2244: A bill for an act relating to juveniles; providing for the retention of certain juvenile court records beyond the age of 23; establishing a centralized system for the identification of juvenile adjudication for certain offenses; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 260.161, subdivision 1, and by adding a subdivision; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 299C.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mr. Cohen introduced—

S.F. No. 2245: A bill for an act relating to health; providing for the release of certain immunization data in certain cases; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 144.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Spear, Marty, Ms. Berglin and Mr. Johnson, D.E. introduced—

S.F. No. 2246: A bill for an act relating to human services; defining commitment; expanding when a neuroleptic medication may be administered; providing informed consent of a competent person for informal admission; changing treatment alternatives; providing for patient commitment to the commissioner; expanding initial commitment period; defining when the commissioner must designate the regional center or treatment facility to take the committed person; transferring cost of care for committed persons awaiting placement or transfer designation to the state; establishing county financial responsibility for persons temporarily confined; granting continuance of the commitment; clarifying duration of continued commitment; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 253B.02, by adding a subdivision; 253B.04, subdivision 1; 253B.09; 253B.10, subdivision 1; 253B.11, subdivision 2, and by adding a subdivision; 253B.12, subdivision 5; and 253B.13, subdivisions 1 and 3; Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 253B.03, subdivision 6c.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Mr. Kroening, Ms. Berglin, Traub and Mr. Johnson, D.E. introduced—

S.F. No. 2247: A bill for an act relating to human services; limiting the powers and duties of public guardian or conservator to the commissioner; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 252A.111, subdivision 5.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Messrs. Langseth, Vickerman and Berg introduced—

S.F. No. 2248: A bill for an act relating to workers' compensation; providing a new general system of law for the compensation of employment

related injuries; providing rights, duties, and remedies; providing for administration and procedure; permitting adoption of administrative rules; modifying insurance regulations; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 79.01, subdivision 1; 79.074, by adding subdivisions; 79.252, by adding a subdivision; 79.50; 79.59; and 176A.03, by adding a subdivision; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 79; proposing coding for new law as Minnesota Statutes, chapter 176C; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 175.007.

Referred to the Committee on Employment.

Messrs. Finn, Sams, Mses. Piper and Berglin introduced—

S.F. No. 2249: A bill for an act relating to health; specifying timelines for the disposal of cremated remains; modifying standards for county payment of funeral expenses; amending Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, sections 256.935, subdivision 1; and 261.035; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 149.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Mr. Bertram introduced—

S.F. No. 2250: A bill for an act relating to crimes; expanding the sex offender registration law to include offenders on probation and offenders held in local correctional facilities, juvenile detention facilities, or treatment facilities; expanding the registration law to also include certain adult victims and to require registration by certain out-of-state offenders who reside in Minnesota; amending Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 243.166, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, and by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mr. Bertram introduced—

S.F. No. 2251: A bill for an act relating to medical examiners; requiring notice to next of kin regarding autopsy results; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 390.11, by adding a subdivision; and 390.32, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Mr. DeCramer introduced—

S.F. No. 2252: A bill for an act relating to education; modifying eligibility for the cooperation and combination program; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 122.241, subdivision 3.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Messrs. Kelly, Spear, Neuville, McGowan and Ms. Ranum introduced—

S.F. No. 2253: A bill for an act relating to public safety; requiring small firearms dealers to maintain pistols in a locked safe after business hours; requiring the commissioner of public safety to establish minimum requirements regarding other security requirements for firearms dealers; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 624.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mses. Ranum, Piper, Mr. Kelly and Mrs. Benson, J.E. introduced—

S.F. No. 2254: A bill for an act relating to chemical abuse prevention and treatment; requiring coordinated prevention efforts concerning fetal alcohol syndrome and drug-exposed infants; appropriating money for community chemical abuse prevention program grants; providing grants for chemical dependency programs targeted at pregnant women and mothers, high-risk youth, and young children; requiring chemical use assessments for certain juveniles at an earlier stage of the juvenile court process; clarifying the duties of the office of drug policy and the chemical abuse prevention resource council; expanding the council's membership; requiring the development of a chemical health index model; requiring a statewide chemical health media campaign; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 241.021, by adding a subdivision; 254A.14, by adding a subdivision; 254A.17, subdivision 1, and by adding a subdivision; 260.151, subdivision 1; and 260.172, by adding a subdivision; Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, sections 299A.30, subdivision 2; 299A.31, subdivision 1; and 299A.32, subdivision 2a; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 145; and 299A.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Ms. Johnson, J.B.; Messrs. Langseth, Dahl, Morse and Neuville introduced—

S.F. No. 2255: A bill for an act relating to education; establishing a discretionary equity levy and aid program; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 124A.22, by adding a subdivision; Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 124A.03, subdivisions 1f, 1g, 1h, and by adding a subdivision; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 124A.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Messrs. Beckman and Metzen introduced—

S.F. No. 2256: A bill for an act relating to regional development commissions; requiring regional development commissions to establish permit and license information centers; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 116C.34, subdivisions 1 and 3; and 462.391, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources.

Mr. Renneke introduced—

S.F. No. 2257: A bill for an act relating to agricultural development; redefining agricultural business enterprise for purposes of the Minnesota agricultural development act; amending Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 41C.02, subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Rural Development.

Mr. Benson, D.D. introduced—

S.F. No. 2258: A bill for an act relating to education; authorizing a special levy for independent school district No. 233, Preston-Fountain.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mr. Benson, D.D. introduced—

S.F. No. 2259: A bill for an act relating to education; providing for fund balances in independent school district No. 233, Preston-Fountain.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mr. Renneke introduced—

S.F. No. 2260: A bill for an act relating to occupations and professions; providing that the board of abstracters may place a licensee in inactive status; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 386.69.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Messrs. Benson, D.D. and Halberg introduced—

S.F. No. 2261: A bill for an act relating to crime; proposing the safe communities act of 1992; increasing penalties for violent crimes; enhancing protections for crime victims; providing measures to assist in the enforcement of criminal laws and the supervision of offenders; authorizing the commissioner of public safety to award emergency anti-crime initiatives grants; providing for anti-violence education and prevention programs; proposing a variety of changes to the felony sentencing system; eliminating "good time" reductions in prison sentences; increasing and imposing new penalties on DWI offenders; increasing treatment and correctional resources for juvenile offenders; improving the operation of the psychopathic personality commitment law; establishing task forces to study ways of improving the criminal records system, the juvenile justice system, and the data practices laws; authorizing state bonds to expand the Minnesota security hospital for psychopathic personality commitments and to permit secure confinement of juveniles at the Minnesota correctional facility-Red Wing; appropriating money and raising fees to fund anti-crime initiatives and other criminal justice system needs; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 8.01; 8.15; 16A.531, by adding a subdivision; 125.05, subdivision 2; 135A.15; 168.042, subdivisions 2 and 4; 169.121, subdivisions 3, 3a, 3c, 4, and 5; 169.123, subdivision 4; 204B.36, subdivision 4; 241.67, subdivisions 3, and by adding a subdivision; 242.195, subdivision 1; 243.53; 244.01, subdivision 8; 244.03; 244.04, subdivisions 1 and 3; 244.05, subdivisions 1, 4, 5, and by adding subdivisions; 244.09, by adding a subdivision; 259.11; 270A.03, subdivision 5; 488A.021, subdivision 3; 488A.19, subdivision 3; 595.02, subdivision 4; 609.033; 609.0341; 609.10; 609.101, by adding a subdivision; 609.115, subdivision 1a; 609.125; 609.135, subdivision 5; 609.152, subdivision 3; 609.19; 609.224, subdivision 2; 609.346, subdivisions 2, 2a, and by adding subdivisions; 609.531, subdivision 6a; 609.5312, subdivision 1; 611A.52, subdivision 6; 624.714, subdivisions 1, 7 and by adding subdivision; 630.36, subdivision 1, and by adding a subdivision; 631.035; 631.07; Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, sections 121.88, subdivision 10; 125.185, subdivision 4a; 169.123, subdivision 2; 171.29, subdivision 2; 171.30, subdivision 2a; 243.166, subdivision 1; 259.10; 260.125, subdivision 3; 260.161, subdivision 3; 518B.01, subdivision 14; 609.531, subdivision 1; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 126; 169; 244; 256F; 290; 299A; 526; 609; 611A; 617; and 626; repealing

Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 204B.36, subdivision 5.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mr. Stumpf introduced—

S.F. No. 2262: A bill for an act relating to education; modifying the review and comment process; establishing a local advisory council; allowing an appeal of a negative review and comment to the state board of education; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 121.148, subdivision 3.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mr. Stumpf introduced—

S.F. No. 2263: A bill for an act relating to unemployment compensation; requiring waiver of certain benefit overpayments; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 268.18, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Employment.

Messrs. Dicklich and Finn introduced—

S.F. No. 2264: A bill for an act relating to utilities; energy conservation improvements; permitting regulated utilities to count expenditures on energy conservation by certain large industrial customers toward the utilities' required expenditures on energy conservation improvements; amending Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 216B.241, subdivisions 1a and 2.

Referred to the Committee on Energy and Public Utilities.

Mr. Knaak introduced—

S.F. No. 2265: A bill for an act relating to human services; establishing a pilot project to fund mental health services for victims of domestic violence; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 245.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Mr. Knaak introduced—

S.F. No. 2266: A bill for an act relating to family law; establishing a pilot community work experience program for absent parents; appropriating money; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 256.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Messrs. Knaak; Benson, D.D. and Mrs. Benson, J.E. introduced—

S.F. No. 2267: A bill for an act relating to highways; making certain towns eligible for money from the municipal state-aid street fund; amending Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, sections 161.082, subdivision 2a; and 162.081, subdivision 4; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 162.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation.

Ms. Reichgott introduced—

S.F. No. 2268: A bill for an act relating to education; allowing certain reserved revenue to be used for programs to develop leadership skills; amending Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 124A.29, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mrs. Pariseau introduced—

S.F. No. 2269: A bill for an act relating to elections; campaign finance; prohibiting certain caucus fundraisers during legislative sessions; prohibiting the transfer of funds from one candidate's principal campaign committee to another candidate's principal campaign committee; prohibiting the formation of more than one campaign committee by a candidate; requiring that recipients of public subsidies agree to raise at least one-half of private contributions from individual constituents; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 10A.14, subdivision 2; 10A.19, subdivision 1; 10A.27, subdivision 9; 10A.322, by adding a subdivision; and 10A.323; Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, sections 10A.065, subdivisions 1 and 5; and 10A.324, subdivision 3; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 10A.

Referred to the Committee on Elections and Ethics.

Mr. Gustafson and Mrs. Pariseau introduced—

S.F. No. 2270: A bill for an act proposing an amendment to the Minnesota Constitution, article IV, section 4, and article V, sections 2 and 4; placing limits on the terms of office of legislators and executive officers.

Referred to the Committee on Elections and Ethics.

Messrs. Riveness, Halberg and Ms. Flynn introduced—

S.F. No. 2271: A bill for an act relating to metropolitan government; requiring the metropolitan airports commission to budget for noise mitigation; setting property acquisition conditions; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, section 473.661, subdivision 1, and by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Metropolitan Affairs.

Mses. Traub, Ranum, Piper and Mr. Dicklich introduced—

S.F. No. 2272: A bill for an act relating to the legislature; declaring a state policy for children, youth, and their families; amending the responsibilities of the legislative commission on children, youth, and their families; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 3.873, subdivisions 1, 4, 5, and by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Mr. Pogemiller introduced—

S.F. No. 2273: A bill for an act relating to state government; reorganizing, consolidating, and restructuring state agencies and departments; creating the department of environmental protection and conservation, the board of environmental review, and the office of assistance and public advocacy;

transferring all powers and duties of the pollution control agency, the department of natural resources, the environmental quality board, the board of water and soil resources, the office of waste management, the harmful substances compensation board, the petroleum tank release compensation board, and the agricultural chemical response compensation board; transferring certain powers and duties of the departments of agriculture, health, public safety, trade and economic development, and transportation; authorizing rulemaking; amending Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, section 15A.081, subdivision 1; proposing coding for new law as Minnesota Statutes, chapters 100A; and 100B.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Mr. Dahl introduced—

S.F. No. 2274: A bill for an act relating to commerce; regulating residential building contractors and remodelers; providing licensing requirements; amending Minnesota Statutes 1991 Supplement, sections 326.83, subdivision 10, and by adding subdivisions; and 326.84, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Messrs. Morse and Stumpf introduced—

S.F. No. 2275: A bill for an act relating to game and fish; providing for free fish house and dark house licenses for residents; allowing the taking of fish on certain boundary waters; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 97A.475, subdivision 11; and 97C.355, subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Environment and Natural Resources.

Mr. Marty and Ms. Ranum introduced—

S.F. No. 2276: A bill for an act relating to data practices; authorizing government agencies to charge the market rate for the release of certain public data for commercial purposes; allowing individuals to request that data not be released for commercial purposes; amending Minnesota Statutes 1990, sections 13.02, by adding a subdivision; 13.03, by adding a subdivision; and 13.04, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Without objection, the Senate reverted to the Order of Business of Motions and Resolutions.

MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS

Ms. Pappas moved that S.F. No. 1868 be withdrawn from the Committee on Health and Human Services and re-referred to the Committee on Commerce. The motion prevailed.

ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Moe, R.D. moved that the Senate do now adjourn until 1:00 p.m., Wednesday, March 4, 1992. The motion prevailed.

Patrick E. Flahaven, Secretary of the Senate